David Taylor Research Center

Bethesda, Maryland 20084-5000

DTRC/SHD-1262-04 DECEMBER 1990

Ship Hydromechanics Department Departmental Report

Use of Navier-Stokes Analysis in Section Design

AD-A242 074

FIC

ELECTE

OCT 31 1991

^{by} Phuc N. Nguyen

DTRC/SHD-1262-04 Use of Navier-Stokes Analysis in Section Design





17000 220

Approved for public release: distribution unlimited.

UNCLASSIFIED

Ĩ

SECURITY CLASSIFICATION OF THIS PAGE

REPORT DOCUMENTATION PAGE										
1a. REPORT SECURITY CLASSIFICATION										
22. SECURITY CLASSIFICATION UNCLASSIFIED			3 DISTRIBUTION/AVAILABILITY OF REPORT Approved for public release: distribution unlimited.							
2b. DECLASSIFICATION/DOWNGRADING SCHEDULE										
4. PERFORMING	4. PERFORMING ORGANIZATION REPORT NUMBER(S)				5. MONITORING ORGANIZATION REPORT NUMBER(S)					
DTRC/SHD 1262-04			Office of Naval Technology							
6A. NAME OF PERFORMING ORGANIZATION 60		6b. OFFICE S	YMBOL	7a. NAME OF MONITORING ORGANIZATION						
David Ta	David Taylor Research Center			544	Office of N	val Technology				
6c. ADDRESS (Cr	ty, State, and ZIP Code)		•		7b. ADDRESS (CITY, SOO N. OUT	STATE, AND ZIP CODE)				
Bethesda	Bethesda, MD 20084-5000			Arlington, VA 22217						
BA. NAME OF FUN ORGANIZATION ONT	Ba. NAME OF FUNDING/SPONSORING 6b. OFF ORGANIZATION (II a)			YMBOL Ne)	9. PROCUREMENT INSTRUMENT IDENTIFICATION NUMBER					
8c. ADDRESS (Cit	ty, State, and ZIP code)				10. SOURCE OF FUND		L TADY			
800 N. Q	uincy St.				ELEMENT NO.	NO.	NO.	ACCESSION NO.		
Arlingto	n, VA 22217				62323N	1-1506-060	RB23C22	DN578521		
11. TITLE (Include Use of N	11. TITLE (Include Security Classification) Use of Navier-Stokes Analysis in Section Design									
12. PERSONAL AL	THOR(S) Phuc N.	Nguyen								
13a. TYPE OF REPORT 13b. TIME COVERED Final FROM 10/88 TO 10/90			10/90	14. DA1 19	TE OF REPORT (Year, Month, Day) 15. PAGE COUNT 190 December iv + 21			DUNT		
16. SUPPLEMENTA Boundary- Michigan	ARY NOTATION Part of Layer and Wake	of this rep of 2-D 1	ort was pr Lifting Foi	esented a ls" at the	as the paper "Na 2 18th Naval Hy	avier-Stokes Ana drodynamics Sy	alysis of Tur mposium, U	bulent niversity of		
17.	7. COSATI CODES 18. SUBJECT			TERMS (CONTINUE ON REVERSE IF NECESSARY AND IDENTIFY BY BLOCK NUMBER)						
FIELD	Gnour			Section (Panel m	ection design, Navier-Stokes method, Conformal mapping, Panel method, Thin-foil theory					
19. ABSTRACT (Continue on reverse if necessary and identify by block number) The Navier-Stokes analysis method and a design technique based on conformal mapping are combined to develop new 2-D thick sections. The Eppler-Somers design technique allows for fast design of arbitrary section shape. The well-validated David Taylor Navier-Stokes code is used to optimize the thickness of the section. From previous experimental results, the turbulence characteristics in the near-wake region correlate with the pressure spectra on the trailing edge of a 2-D lifting surface. Therefore, the turbulent kinetic energy, and the Reynolds shear stress are used as design parameters to develop new 2-D sections. Minimizing these parameters is assumed to provide desirable boundary-layer and wake characteristics. The characteristics of one new section are compared with those of a baseline section to demonstrate the new foil design method. 20. DISTRIBUTION/AVAILABILITY OF ABSTRACT DITIC USERS 21. ABSTRACT SECURITY CLASSIFICATION UNCLASSIFIED/UNUMITED DITIC USERS 21. ABSTRACT SECURITY CLASSIFICATION UNCLASSIFIED										
22a. NAME OF RESPONSIBLE INDIVIDUAL Phuc N. Nguyen					22b. TELEPHONE (Include Area Code) (301) 227-145022c. OFFICE SYMBOL Code 1544					
DD FORM 1473, 8	4 MAR				<u> </u>	SECURIT	CLASSIFICATION	N OF THIS PAGE		

CONTENTS

	Page
NOMENCLATURE	iv
ABSTRACT	1
ADMINISTRATIVE INFORMATION	1
INTRODUCTION	1
OUTLINE OF ANALYTICAL METHOD	2
THIN SECTION DESIGN WITH POTENTIAL FLOW METHOD	2
THICK SECTION DESIGN WITH NAVIER-STOKES METHOD	3
DISCUSSION OF PERFORMANCE PREDICTIONS	4
MEAN FLOW CHARACTERISTICS	4
TURBULENCE CHARACTERISTICS	5
CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS	6
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS	6
REFERENCES	21

FIGURES

		Page
1.	Flow chart of the new section design procedure	7
2.	Pressure distribution of the thin-foil design for the new section	8
3.	Camber and thickness distributions of the new section	9
4.	Lift coefficient vs. camber ratio or ideal angle of attack for the new section	10
5.	Three-zone C-type grid for Navier-Stokes calculations	11
6.	Geometry and pressure distribution of the baseline section	12
7.	Velocity field around the baseline section	13
8.	Geometry and pressure distribution of the new section	14
9.	Velocity field around the new section	15
10.	Lift coefficient vs. angle of attack for the new section	16
11.	Lift coefficient vs. thickness for the new, and the baseline section	17
12.	Turbulent kinetic energy profiles for the new, and the baseline section	18
13.	Shear Reynolds stress profiles for the new, and the baseline section	19

TABLES

		Page
1.	Input values for the thin-foil design of the new section	 3

NOMENCLATURE

α	Angle of attack
C	Chord
C_L	Lift coefficient
C_p	Pressure coefficient
ε	Turbulent dissipation
f/f_m	Chordwise distribution of camber as normalized by the maximum value
f_m/C	Maximum camber normalized by chord
k	Turbulent kinetic energy
t/t_m	Chordwise distribution of thickness as normalized by the maximum value
t_m/C	Maximum thickness normalized by chord
Uo	Freestream velocity
u	Fluctuating streamwise velocity
υ	Fluctuating transverse velocity
x	Streamwise distance
y	Transverse distance

ABSTRACT

TAB

Distribution/

H-1

Availability Codes

Avall and/

Special

LOC'MIN and JUSTIFICATION

The Navier-Stokes analysis method and a design technique based on conformal mapping are combined to develop new 2-D thick sections. The Eppler-Somers design technique allows for fast design of arbitrary section shape. The well-validated David Taylor Navier-Stokes code is used to optimize the thickness of the section. From previous experimental results, the piet turbulence characteristics in the near-wake region correlate with the pressure spectra on the trailing edge of a 2-D lifting surface. Therefore, the turbulent kinetic energy, and the Reynolds shear stress are used as design parameters to develop new 2-D sections. Minimizing these parameters is assumed to provide desirable boundary-layer and wake characteristics. The characteristics of one new section are compared with those of a baseline section to demonstrate the new foil design method.

ADMINISTRATIVE INFORMATION

This project was performed by the Propulsor Technology Branch (Code 1544) of the David Taylor Research Center (DTRC) under Project Number 1-1506-060-34 for the Office of Naval Technology.

INTRODUCTION

In this report, with the aid of a Reynolds-averaged Navier-Stokes (N-S) analysis, the potential of tailored blade sections instead of standard NACA sections is explored for optimization of propeller performance. Propeller designers normally use sections with NACA 16 or NACA 66 thickness distributions and an a=0.8 meanline. Due to recent improvements in computational capability, it is now feasible to shape the section to achieve a specific design goal, whether it be maximizing efficiency, minimizing cavitation, or boundary-layer control. Also, for some applications, it is desirable to maximize the section thickness without degrading the propeller performance by massive flow separation. The motivation for this new section work is due to the experimental results of Gershfeld et al. [1], and Huang et al. [2], which have shown that the pressure spectra on the trailing edge are related to the turbulent flow characteristics in the nearwake region. The turbulent flow data in Ref. [2] were used for validation of the N-S analysis [3]. The validation showed that the David Taylor Navier-Stokes DTNS code [4] can be usual in new section design.

The preliminary design is based on the Eppler-Somers conformal mapping technique [5]. This technique allows for fast design of arbitrary section shapes with minimum effort from the designer. Originally developed for wing section design in incompressible flows, the code can calculate the boundary-layer development with an integral method. The

code handles high Reynolds number flows with an empirical turbulent transition model. At DTRC, the Eppler-Somers code has been mainly used for cavitation work [6]. Its analysis capability with a panel method provides quick calculation of the cavitation bucket for a given section shape. In this report, the N-S analysis is employed where the turbulence characteristics are needed. The differential boundary-layer method could have been used, but Ref. [2] showed limitations of the method in the turbulent wake calculations when the mean velocity profiles and the Reynolds shear stress profiles need shifting on the order of one wake thickness to match the experimental data. The following section describes how the new section is designed.

OUTLINE OF ANALYTICAL METHOD

The objective is to maximize the thickness of a 2-D lifting foil and to reduce trailing edge turbulent kinetic energy without incurring significant flow separation. This is achieved by control of the turbulent boundary-layer and wake characteristics through careful shaping of the 2-D section. The N-S analysis is used in the last stage of a foil design process to calculate the turbulent flow characteristics and to provide feedback for thickness adjustment. The flow chart in Fig. 1 summarizes this iterative design process. Each step in the design procedure is now described in detail.

THIN SECTION DESIGN WITH POTENTIAL FLOW METHOD

The Eppler-Somers code was chosen for its fast and accurate capability to produce 2-D sections. The features of the code are: conformal mapping method for design of sections with prescribed flow characteristics, panel method for inviscid flow analysis of the designed section over a range of angles of attack, and an integral boundary-layer method for preliminary viscous analysis. In this code, the desired pressure distribution at design angle of attack is not actually entered directly as input. This would be single-point design. The Eppler-Somers formulation can do multi-point design. This is achieved by dividing the foil section into segments. Each segment can satisfy a design requirement, which is a desired velocity distribution at a desired angle of attack. This multi-point design capability is possible because the function that relates the velocity distribution to the angle of attack varies only with the position on the section surface [5]. Iteration is necessary to achieve the requirements of a multi-point design, whether it be widening the cavitation bucket, or the laminar flow bucket.

In the Eppler-Somers code, the inputs are 5 angles of attack for 5 segments around the section surface. Another input parameter is the chordwise location at which the pressure recovery starts. The further upstream the pressure recovery starts, the more gradual the pressure gradient, and the less likely the flow is to separate. On the other hand, starting the pressure recovery too early means that the hydrofoil does not develop as much lift as it theoretically could. In order to achieve the same lift, the "early-recovery" hydrofoil will have lower minimum C_p than that of the "late-recovery"

hydrofoil. For standard propeller sections, this position is at 80% chord, corresponding to the so-called a=0.8 meanline shape.

To illustrate with the design of a new section, the 5 pairs of angles and the corresponding locations are specified such that the pressure distribution on the pressure side is relatively flat, and that on the suction side has a strong flow-accelerating region from the leading edge to the minimum pressure point at mid-chord. The values of these parameters are presented in the following table.

Table 1. Input values for the thin-foil design of the new section.

 Positions on the transformed circle (deg) 	170.	0.	192.	219.	360.
Corresponding angles of attack (deg)	2.09	1.72	2 0.0	0.69	 2.8
 Position for pressure recovery (deg)	90.0				

Note that the section designed at this stage is thin (< 10% t/C). The code does not iterate for boundary-layer displacement effect; therefore, it can not handle large thicknesses well. The resulting pressure distribution and the section itself for this stage are shown in Fig. 2. It has the desired features as specified earlier. At this point, the section is split into the thickness distribution and the camber distribution as shown in Fig. 3.

From the given camber distribution, the ideal angle of attack α_i can be calculated for any camber/chord ratio using the conventional thin-foil theory [7] which assumes that the mean camber line represents the section. Therefore, the " C_L vs. α " linear function can be calculated since the slope is 2π . The thin-foil theory is used in this design method to estimate the camber ratio and the α_i for a given C_L . Fig. 4 shows the C_L vs. f_m/C for the new section, and the corresponding C_L vs. α_i . The thickness effect is then added, and the resulting section analyzed by the Reynolds-averaged N-S method. From viscous analysis, it is seen that the lift coefficient goes down as the thickness is increased. The trend is reverse for an inviscid analysis. Therefore, it is not safe to desig." thick (> 15\% t/C) lifting surfaces using inviscid tools alone.

THICK SECTION DESIGN WITH NAVIER-STOKES METHOD

Given the basic thin section, the N-S analysis is used iteratively to obtain the final design. Two parameters are used in the iteration with the N-S analysis: thickness, and

angle of attack. The criterion for the final design is "no-separation" in the range of $\pm 4^{\circ}$ around the design angle of attack with the maximum thickness as large as possible. The $\pm 4^{\circ}$ range is normally the fluctuation of angle of attack that a propeller section sees in straight-ahead operation.

There are two steps in obtaining a N-S solution: 1) geometry preparation, including grid generation, and 2) flow calculation. For this study, the grid generation is based on the work of Coleman [8], which uses partial differential equations to define a body-fitted grid. Here, a multi-zone grid is used for better control of the grid structure, which is especially useful when combined with a multi-zone flow code such as the DTNS code [4]. For a high Reynolds number flow (greater than 10^6) the first grid point should be as close as 10^{-5} chord length away from the body, so that the sub-layer can be resolved. Fig. 5 shows a 3-zone grid used for computing the flow over a foil with Reynolds number of 5×10^6 . The flow solution procedure is described in Ref. [3]. It is summarized in the following paragraphs.

Artificial compressibility [9] is used in solving the 2-D incompressible N-S equations. The N-S and the $k - \epsilon$ equations [10] contain both first derivative convective terms and second derivative viscous terms. The viscous terms are numerically well-behaved terms and central differencing is used. An upwind differenced Total Variational Diminishing (TVD) scheme [11] is used for the convective part of the equations. The equations are solved in an implicit coupled manner using approximate factorization. This creates a diagonally dominant system which requires the inversion of block tri-diagonal matrices. An important quality of any scheme is its convergence rate. The diagonal dominance of the present method allows large time steps to be used for fast convergence.

The solution starts with initial estimates for the kinetic energy and dissipation fields. Here, the flow field calculated with the Baldwin-Lomax [12] turbulence model is supplied to the $k - \epsilon$ model equations to get the estimates. The N-S equations are solved to the wall with proper no-slip boundary conditions for all cases. With the Baldwin-Lomax turbulence model, the Van Driest mixing-length model takes care of the near-wall region. The N-S equations and the $k - \epsilon$ model equations are iterated in pseudo-time until convergence is obtained.

DISCUSSION OF PERFORMANCE PREDICTIONS

The experimental data [2] for two 2-dimensional lifting foils are used as bench-marks for the N-S analysis. Both foils have an a=0.8 meanline and NACA 16 Type II thickness distribution. The validation of the N-S code is documented in Ref. [3], which concluded that the DTNS code can provide reasonable predictions of the viscous flow performance.

MEAN FLOW CHARACTERISTICS

The baseline section, shown in Fig. 6, has an $\epsilon = 0.8$ meanline and a NACA 16 thickness distribution with maximum thickness of 17.16% chord and camber of 4.79%

chord. The design lift coefficient is approximately 0.69. The chosen Reynolds number is 5×10^6 to match the conditions for 1/4-scale tests of naval propellers. Fig. 6 also shows the difference between the pressure distribution calculated by N-S method and by panel method [13]. The angle of attack in Fig. 6 is 4°; the design angle is only 1.1°. Due to the effect of the thick boundary-layer and flow separation, the angle of attack has to be high to achieve the design lift. For the same operating conditions, the velocity vector plot in Fig. 7 shows the flow separation of the baseline section on the suction side at approximately 88% chord. This flow separation will correlate with high turbulence activity according to the findings in Ref. [2].

The final design of the new section is produced, after some N-S iterations with different thicknesses and angles of attack. The geometry is shown in Fig. 8 with the pressure distribution at design angle, 2.8°. The maximum camber and thickness ratios are 5.41% chord and 14.73% chord, respectively. The lift coefficient from this pressure distribution is approximately 0.69, the same as the design value. The desirable characteristics for the boundary-layer development are presented in this pressure distribution. Maximum suction peak is around 50% chord on the suction side; steep pressure recovery follows immediately, then the gradient becomes milder to minimize flow separation as the trailing edge is approached. Also, the pressure side pressure distribution is rather flat over most of the surface; this should reduce the turbulent kinetic energy. The velocity vector plot in Fig. 9 shows attached flow on both the pressure and suction side at design angle of attack. Fig. 10 shows the C_L vs. α performance of the new section. Note that there is no lift degradation at high angles. Also, the results of the thickness parametric study show that the new section maintains considerable lift as thickness is increased up to 22% chord, as compared to the standard NACA-16 section (see Fig. 11). The Reynolds number for this parametric study is 2×10^6 which simulates the average conditions for propeller tests in the 36-inch Variable Pressure Water Tunnel at DTRC. It should be pointed out, however, that the weak point of this design is the low minimum C_p compared to that of the baseline.

TURBULENCE CHARACTERISTICS

The attached flow field of the new section produces lower turbulent kinetic energy as seen in Fig. 12, and lower Reynolds shear stress as seen in Fig. 13 when compared to the baseline section. This trend is more pronounced for the suction side than the pressure side, indicating flow separation on the suction side. And the pressure side of the new section has low turbulence activity because the pressure distribution there is almost flat over the entire surface. Refs. [1,2] showed correlation of turbulence characteristics in the near-wake region with the pressure spectra at the trailing edge. How this correlation function behaves is not well understood. According to Ref. [1], mild flow separation on the suction side produces higher pressure on the trailing edge at low frequency. But the high frequency pressure fluctuations are reduced. The goal of this project is to minimize flow separation and the accompanying high pressure fluctuations on the trailing edge for a given loading. Figs. 12 and 13 show that the new section achieves this. The trailing edge, however, should be thickened and beveled when constructed for experimental evaluation.

CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

In this report, a design method for 2-D hydrofoil sections is developed by combining a conformal mapping technique with an iterative N-S analysis. The key point of this method is that thickness is considered an important part of the design process for thick hydrofoils. Results show that a new section designed by this method has lower nearwake turbulence activity, for the same lift coefficient, than the baseline. And for the same thickness, the new section carries more lift than the baseline section. This trend is more important when the Reynolds number is decreased as in model-scale experiments. Since the design goal is to maximize thickness with minimum flow separation, this new section is not recommended for other applications in which high thickness is not needed. This particular new section will certainly have poor cavitation performance. Nevertheless, this report illustrates that the Reynolds-averaged N-S analysis is very useful in guiding 2-D section design. The N-S analysis, however, can only give insight about the magnitude and the spatial distribution of the mean flow and the Reynolds stresses. The spectral behavior is entirely unknown.

Until better turbulence models, numerical techniques, and computers become more accessible, the N-S analysis should only be used for final design fine-tuning or off-design predictions as was done in this case. From the results, further work is recommended to: (1) develop a new section with thicker trailing edge; 2) develop a series of new sections with different locations of the minimum pressure point on the suction side and experimentally evaluate them in the same manner as in Refs. [1,2]; and 3) concentrate on the development of turbulence models that can calculate more accurately turbulent flows with strong adverse pressure gradient, and even separation.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The author would like to thank Dr. Frank Peterson (Code 1544) and Mr. Gabor Dobay (Code 1544) for guidance and support in this project. In addition, discussion with Dr. Young Shen (Code 1542), Dr. Rod Coleman (Code 1501), and Mr. Joe Gorski (Code 1501) has been very useful.



Fig. 1. Flow chart of the new section design procedure.







Į







Ţ











ſ























REFERENCES

1. Gershfeld, J., W.K. Blake, C.W. Kinsley, "Trailing Edge Flows and Aerodynamic Sound," AIAA, ASME, ASCE, SIAM, APS 1st National Fluid Dynamics Congress, Cincinnati, Ohio, paper 88-3826-CP, July 1988.

 Huang, T.T., L.P. Purtell and Y.T. Lee, "Turbulence Characteristics of Trailing-Edge Flows on Thick and Thin Hydrofoils," Proceedings of the 4th Symposium of Numerical and Physical Aspects of Aerodynamics Flows, CSU Long Beach, CA, Jan 16-19, 1989.
 Nguyen, P.N. and J.J. Gorski, "Navier-Stokes Analysis of Turbulent Boundary-Layer and Wakes for 2-D Lifting Bodies," Proceedings of the 18th Naval Hydrodynamics Symposium, Ann Arbor, Aug 1990.

4. Gorski, J.J., "Solutions of the Incompressible Navier-Stokes Equations Using an Upwind Differenced TVD Scheme," 11th Int. Conf. on Num. Methods in Fluid Dynamics, Williamsburg, Va., Jul 1988.

5. Eppler, R. and D.M. Somers, "Low Speed Airfoil Design and Analysis," Advanced Technology Airfoil Research Conference, Langley Research Center, NASA, Hampton, Va., Mar 1978.

6. Shen, Y.T. and R. Eppler, "Wing Sections for Hydrofoils-Part II: Nonsymmetric Profiles," Journal of Ship Research, Vol. 25, pp. 191-200 (Sep 1981).

7. Abbott, I.H. and A.E. Von Doenhoff, <u>Theory of Wing Sections</u>, Dover Publications, Inc., 1959.

8. Coleman, R.M., "Inmesh: An Interactive Program for Numerical Grid Generation," DTNSRDC-85/054, 1985.

9. Chorin, A.J. "A Numerical Method for Solving Incompressible Viscous Flow Problems," J. Comp. Phys., Vol. 2, pp. 12-26, 1967.

10. Launder, B.E. and D.B. Spalding, "The Numerical Computation of Turbulent Flows," Computer Methods in Applied Mechanics and Engineering, Vol. 3, pp. 269-89, 1974.

11. Harten, A., "High Resolution Schemes for Hyperbolic Conservation Laws," Jour. Comp. Phys., Vol. 49, pp. 357-393, 1983.

12. Baldwin, B.S. and H. Lomax, "Thin Layer Approximation and Algebraic Model for Separated Turbulent Flows," AIAA 16th Aerospace Sciences Meeting, Huntsville, Al., Jan. 1978.

13. Maskew, B., "Program VSAERO - A Computer Program for Calculating the Nonlinear Aerodynamic Characteristics of Arbitrary Configurations," Analytical Methods, Inc., April 1982.